# MINUTES OF THE FIVE HUNDRED TWENTY NINTH MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE MONROE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Board of Trustees Room Z-203 La-Z-Boy Center 7:30 p.m., October 22, 2012

Members present: Joseph N. Bellino Jr., William H. Braunlich, Marjorie A. Kreps, Linda S. Lauer, Michael R. Meyer

Members absent: William J. Bacarella Jr., Mary Kay Thayer

Also present: Randell Daniels, Sue Wetzel, Grace Yackee, Deb Beagle, Molly McCutchan, Brian Lay, Barbara McNamee, John Joy, Jim Blumberg, Steve Mapes, Jim Ross, Peter Coomar, Joe Verkennes, Tracy Vogt, Sharon Gray, Pat Nedry, Jean Ford, Jamie DeLeeuw, Kim Lindquist, Josh Myers, Valerie Culler, Mark Hall, Jim DeVries, Julia Wells (Agora), and Victoria McIntyre (recording secretary)

- 1. Vice Chair Braunlich called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.
- 2. It was moved by Mrs. Kreps and seconded by Mr. Meyer that the minutes of the regular meeting of September 24, 2012 be approved as presented.

The motion carried.

- 3. There were no delegations present.
- 4. It was moved by Ms. Lauer that funds be reinstated for the Whitman Center spring/summer 2013 semesters.

The motion was not seconded. Since there was no second, the motion was not before the meeting.

B. 3. a. (1) 5. It was moved by Mrs. Kreps and seconded by Mr. Meyer that Policy 12.11, Scheduled Paid Holidays and Vacations Days – Professional Staff, be revised as presented.

The motion carried.

B. 3. a. (2) 6. It was moved by Mr. Bellino and seconded by Mrs. Kreps that the Monroe County Community College Board of Trustees certifies that Monroe County Community College not only meets but exceeds the best practice standards required by Section 230 of Michigan Public Act 201 of 2012, the education

omnibus appropriations act for fiscal year 2013, as the attached table demonstrates.

Vice President Wetzel gave an overview of reporting requirements per P. A. 201 of 2012. The state budget director may withhold a community college's funding if it does not comply with the reporting requirements.

The motion carried.

B. 3. a. (3) 7. It was moved by Mr. Meyer and seconded by Mr. Bellino that the Five-Year Capital Outlay Plan be approved as presented.

Vice President Wetzel noted that the plan is submitted each year in accord with state requirements. Although the State Budget Office is not accepting capital outlay projects for fiscal year 2014 at this time, the report needs to be submitted.

The motion carried.

B. 3. a. (4) 8. Appointment of Group Three Directors (Directors at Large) to The Foundation at Monroe County Community College Board of Directors

Section 5.4 Election, Classification and Terms

(C) Group Three Directors (Directors at large) are recommended to the Board of Trustees for approval, by vote of The Foundation's directors, and shall serve three (3) year terms following the initial staggered terms.

It was moved by Mr. Meyer and seconded by Mrs. Kreps that the following individuals be appointed Group Three Directors on The Foundation at Monroe County Community College Board of Directors for a three-year term expiring as indicated:

### Three-Year Term Expiring December 31, 2015

Florence Buchanan
H. Douglas Chaffin
Joseph A. Costello, Jr.
Ignazio Cuccia
Lynette Dowler
Susan J. Mehregan
Herbert E. Smith
Rosemarie Walker.

The motion carried.

B. 3. a. (5) 9. It was moved by Mr. Meyer and seconded by Ms. Lauer that the following resolution be adopted:

WHEREAS, Ms. Sharon Gray, MSN, RN, has decided to retire from her position as associate professor of practical nursing at Monroe County Community College, effective January 1, 2013, and

WHEREAS, for over five years, she served as the Practical Nursing Program Director, a position she has held since its inception, and

WHEREAS, she was directly involved in the development of the curriculum for the Practical Nursing Program and has provided instruction in most of the program's courses, and

WHEREAS, she was instrumental in obtaining full program approval for the Practical Nursing Program through the Michigan Board of Nursing in January 2011, and

WHEREAS, she was instrumental in obtaining state approval for the Practical Nursing Program through the Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Act, and

WHEREAS, she served as interim dean of the Health Sciences Division and Director of Nursing and supported activities unique to the associate degree in nursing (ADN) program throughout her employment at the College, and

WHEREAS, she is a member of the Michigan League for Nursing, the National Association of Practical Nursing Educators and Services, the Michigan Licensed Practical Nursing Association, and the Michigan Council of Nursing Education Administrators, and

WHEREAS, she has inspired countless nursing graduates over multiple states, many of whom continue to provide excellent patient care to citizens in surrounding area hospitals, and

WHEREAS, she will be retiring following the graduation of the sixth class of MCCC Practical Nursing Students in December 2012, and

WHEREAS, she has been a role model and mentor for nursing educators who share her passion for the highest degree of excellence in patient care, and

WHEREAS, she was nominated for the Outstanding Faculty Award on several occasions, and

WHEREAS, she served as an active member of the Diversity Standing Committee, Financial Aid Committee, various faculty and administrative Search Committees, Nursing Workgroup, Health Sciences Division Committee, and Distance Learning committee, and

WHEREAS, she demonstrated a high level of professionalism and dedication to nursing throughout her distinguished career as a registered nurse and nursing educator, on campus and in the nursing community,

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Trustees recognize Ms. Sharon Gray, MSN, RN, for her dedicated service and contributions to the college, our students, and the community, and

THAT IT BE FURTHER RESOLVED, that by the president's recommendation, Ms. Sharon Gray shall hereby be granted faculty emeritus status, and

THAT IT BE FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees expresses its very best wishes for her continued success, well being and happiness on this October 22, 2012.

Vice Chair Braunlich read the resolution to Ms. Gray who thanked the college for the opportunity to teach and to guide students toward meaningful careers.

The motion carried.

C. 3. a. (1) 10. Vice President Wetzel reported on the following staff appointment and retirement:

#### Staff Appointment

Danielle Lambert, Upward Bound Academic Coordinator, effective September 24, 2012 (part-time grant position changed to full-time grant position)

#### Retirement

Sharon Gray, Associate Professor of Practical Nursing, effective January 1, 2013

C. 3. a. (2) 11. The statement of General Fund Revenues and Expenditures for the period ending September 30, 2012 was presented.

Deb Beagle, Director of Financial Services, reported that at the end of September expenses exceeded revenues by nearly \$236,000. The college will begin to receive revenue from the state in October. A transfer of \$2,000,000 from the maintenance and replacement fund was made to cover construction costs on the Career Technology Center.

- C. 3. a. (3) 12. The Annual Committee Report was presented by Vice President Wetzel. The booklet provides a summary of shared governance activities at MCCC throughout the year. This next year, part of the college constitution will be suspended as the college moves through the test year of the new council model of governance. Three standing committees remain: Learning Assessment, Curriculum, and Academic Review.
- C. 3. a. (4) 13. Mark Hall, Director of Admissions and Guidance Services, reported that the fall 2012 student headcount is down 8 percent and credit hours are down 9 percent. There is a decline in county enrollment possibly due to cuts of high school counselors. Because of this, the college will be helping high school students with college enrollment.

John Joy, Dean of Corporate and Community Services, distributed two reports: "CCS Division: Enrollment/Student Profile/Training Summary" and "Summary of Economic Development Grants Awarded to MCCC by Source (1982-2012)." The reports supply data that indicate a decrease in total annual non-credit enrollment. This coincides with factors such as the implementation of the 50 percent tuition waiver for senior citizens, a decrease in unemployment, and reductions and caps on funding to assist specific companies.

- C. 3. a. (5) 14. Steve Mapes, Associate Professor of Student Services, reviewed the Student Profile Data Report for Fall 2012. The typical student profile varied slightly from last year: female, Caucasian, 25 year old, Monroe County resident, part-time transfer student. One area of change includes an increase in transfer degree program students from last year to 53 percent transfer and 47 percent career. Out-of-district enrollment is up while in-county enrollment is down. Enrollment from area high schools is at 26 percent down from an average of 30 percent. Many training grants are gone, but grants for veterans are available. Dual enrollment numbers rose with 85 students from the Middle College.
- C. 3. a. (6) 15. Changes in procedures 2.36(a), Presidential Evaluation Form (question number 13 divided into two separate questions); 3.07(a) Procedure for Virtual Learning Collaborative (MCCVLC) (fees updated); 3.11(c), Rules and Regulations for Presidential Scholarships (procedures updated); and 3.11(n), Rules and Regulations for C. Ernest Read Scholarships (procedures updated) were presented to the board.

Vice President Yackee explained that the MCCVLC fees reflect standard rates of a collaborative of Michigan colleges for virtual learning classes.

16. Jim Blumberg presented an update on the Career Technology Center. About \$5.8 million has been expensed through September 30, 2012. The building

- should be fully enclosed by the end of the month. Mechanical systems are in place and detail work has started. The building is about half finished.
- 17. Trustee Lauer reported on the MCCA Summer Workshop in Traverse City. The theme of the workshop revolved around technology. Nick Bilton, author of <u>I Live in the Future and Here's How it Works</u> spoke about "hyperpersonalization" technology which allows students to learn their own way. Young people want to share and create, be part of the conversation, and have a need to be independent. They are also part of the "gamification generation" which promotes the need to integrate technology devices into classrooms. On line collaboration promotes collective intelligence and fosters greater learning. Another speaker, Dr. Cable Green, spoke to the emerging open education movement which allows the open sharing of information on line to improve learning for everyone.
- C. 4. b. (1) 18. Reports on the MCCA Board of Directors Meeting that was held October 4-5 in Bay City and attended by Trustees Thayer and Kreps will be presented at the November board meeting.
- C. 4. b. (2) 19. Reports on the ACCT Annual Congress October 10-13 in Boston will be presented at the November board meeting by Trustee Thayer.
- C. 4. b. (3) 20. Reappointment of Group One Foundation Director for a three-year term expiring December 31, 2015 will take place at the November board meeting by Chair Bacarella.
  - 21. The November board meeting date has been changed to November 19, 2012.
- C. 4. b. (4). 22. Upcoming events were noted.
  - 23. It was moved by Mr. Bellino and seconded by Mr. Meyer that the meeting be adjourned.

The motion carried, and the meeting was adjourned at 8:53 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

William H. Braunlich Vice Chair

Victoria McIntyre Recording Secretary

vdm

These minutes were approved at the November 19, 2012 Board of Trustees meeting.

## MCCC Adherence to Best Practices Grid (PA 201 of 2012)

Best Practices by	Examples of MCCC Adherence
Category	
	c development and business or industry partnerships
(i) The community college has active partnerships with local employers including hospitals and health care providers.	Area employers participate on academic program advisory committees and provide student clinical sites for occupational and non-credit training programs.  The college has developed specific courses, certificates, and programs to meet direct needs as identified by business and industry. Recent examples include the NUET (Nuclear Engineering Technology) program and the Heavy Construction Management program developed in concert with DTE Energy, as well as the Ophthalmic Assistant Certificate program developed in collaboration with Reed Vision.
	MCCC Health Science programs partner with numerous clinical agencies (hospitals, long-term care facilities, community-based and outpatient clinics) to provide students a realistic environment for student learning. Clinical and community partners serve on advisory committees for two major programs within the division, Nursing and Respiratory Therapy. Many MCCC graduates transition to employment positions within these clinical agencies post-graduation/licensure.
(ii) The community college provides customized on-site training for area companies, employees, or both.	The college has been actively engaged in customized training activities with area business and industry since 1982. In 2011-2012, MCCC delivered customized training on-site to 17 employers training 750 employees as well as offering Business & Industry Institute Training (customized training session that are public classes but promoted to small and medium sized companies who may not have enough employees to contract for on-site training) in 38 courses and training 297 employees.  Monroe County Community College entered into a Michigan New Jobs Training Agreement with Ventower Industries, LLC and training began in the fall of 2011. In addition, MCCC offered training utilizing funding from the Economic Development Jobs Training Program and the Incumbent Worker Training program.
(iii) The community college supports entrepreneurship through a small	The College had established the first SBDC in Monroe in 1984, which has since been assumed by the Monroe County Business Development Corporation. The College offers a six course series of non-credit training seminars in starting and operating a

Best Practices by Category	Examples of MCCC Adherence
business assistance center or other training or consulting activities targeted	small business. In addition courses are offered in Quickbooks, using the Internet to promote and expand businesses (three course series) and bookkeeping and payroll.
toward small businesses.	MCCC has developed and offers a <i>Small Business</i> & <i>Entrepreneur</i> course a part of the Business Management curriculum.
(iv) The community college supports technological advancement through industry partnerships,	MCCC is currently constructing a \$17 million dollar Career Technology Center to house a variety of occupational degree programs, and to deliver customized training programs for industry.
incubation activities, or operation of a Michigan technical education center or other advanced	The College is currently recognized by the US Dept. of Labor as a Welding Center of Expertise and was awarded \$1.7 million in grant funds to provide training for unemployed and incumbent workers.
technology center.	The College is currently developing a grant application with assistance from the University of Michigan to conduct a market feasibility study to establish a business incubator facility in Monroe County.
(v) The community college has active partnerships with local or regional workforce and economic development	The College has been involved in partnerships with all local/regional economic development agencies such as the Monroe County Business Development Corporation, the Monroe County Economic Development Commission, the Monroe County Chamber of Commerce, and the Monroe MiWorks/Southeast Michigan Community Alliance.
agencies.	The College has participated in a variety of economic development/job training programs through the Michigan Economic Development Corporation, and is actively engaged in the recent formation of the Workforce Intelligence Network (WIN), comprised of eight community colleges and seven workforce development boards in SE Michigan.
	College administrators are active participants on local workforce development boards including the Monroe County Chamber of Commerce and the Monroe County Business Development Corporation.
	In partnership with SEMCA Michigan Works!, Siena Heights University, Eastern Michigan University, Michigan Rehabilitation

Best Practices by Examples of MCCC Adherence	
Category	Examples of Mode Adherence
	Services, Michigan Institute of Aviation and Technology, and the Veterans of Foreign Wars, MCCC presented the second annual Career and Opportunity Expo in April 2011.
Category B: Education	nal Partnerships
(i) The community college has active partnerships with regional high schools, intermediate school districts, and careertech centers to provide instruction through dual enrollment, direct credit, middle college, or academy programs.	Even with the demise of the TECH PREP program from the federal level, the College honors a number of articulation agreements established with area high schools.  The Monroe County Middle College is a collaboration between the Monroe County Intermediate School District (ISD), Monroe County Community College, and Mercy Memorial Hospital System and is designed to provide students with early entry into a health careers program. Students enter the Monroe County Middle College in the 9th grade with a comprehensive curriculum that will culminate with award of a high school diploma upon graduation. Students in the program also have the opportunity to earn up to 60 transferable college credit hours or an associate's degree and/or a certificate in the field of health science.  MCCC offers dual enrollment which allows high school students to attend MCCC classes and earn college credit while still attending high school. Over 331 high school students are participating in Dual Enrollment during the fall 2012 semester.  MCCC's Admissions Office schedules recruiting visits to area high schools and education fairs throughout Monroe County, southern Wayne County, and Lucas County in Ohio. The team visited all 11 Monroe County high schools (many of them more than once), 13 out-of-county high schools (many of them more than once), 13 out-of-county high schools, 14 college/education fairs throughout southeast Michigan and northwest Ohio, and participated in recruitment, information and orientation programs for dual enrollment, veterans' programs as well as with Michigan Works! and the Monroe County Counselors Association.  MCCC enrolled 31 percent of the 2012 Monroe County high school graduates.
(ii) The community college hosts, sponsors, or participates in enrichment programs	Monroe County Community College, in cooperation with The Monroe County Counselors, annual hosts a College Night featuring admissions representatives from more than 60 colleges and universities who are available to answer questions and provide information about their respective institutions.

Best Practices by Category	Examples of MCCC Adherence
for area K-12 students, such as college days, summer or after- school programming, or science Olympiad.	Grant, loan and scholarship professionals are also in attendance. In addition, a Transfer Fair is hosted annually at the Whitman Center, located in southern Monroe County.
	MCCC offers FUNdamental Summer Camps each year to area K-12 students. In 2012, 15 courses were held on Main Campus and four camps were held at the Whitman Center.
	MCCC English faculty are involved in "reading partnerships" with 9 <sup>th</sup> grade readers and students in the English 256 class.
	One Book, One Community encourages participation of K-12 students (four area high schools participate each year) through book clubs, book discussions, author lectures, and creative writing workshops.
	MCCC Creative Writing students serve as judges for a high school writing competition each year.
	MCCC hosts visiting artists twice per semester and their exhibitions and gallery talks are open to the public.
	Additional enrichment activities for K-12 students hosted by MCCC include: College Goal Sunday, Financial Aid Information Sessions, X-Tech, Dual Enrollment Information Sessions, and lung dissection presentations at area schools.
(iii) The community college provides, supports, or participates in programming to promote successful transitions to college for traditional age students, including grant programs such as talent search, upward bound, or	Monroe County Community College is the proud recipient of two TRiO Upward Bound grants. Upward Bound is a program funded by the U.S. Department of Education that prepares high school students for post-secondary education. Established in 2007, Monroe County Community College Upward Bound serves 110 students, grades 9-12 from Monroe High School located in Monroe, Michigan and Airport High School located in Carleton, Michigan. Upward Bound is a challenging, preparatory program for students who demonstrate the ability or desire to attend college. All program services are free for participants.  MCCC faculty are actively engaged with health science faculty
other activities to promote college readiness in area high schools and community centers.	at area high schools to discuss competencies for college readiness. These roundtable discussion help to ensure that students are prepared to meet the rigors of health care curriculums.

Best Practices by Category	Examples of MCCC Adherence
(iv) The community college provides, supports, or participates in programming to promote successful transitions to college for new or reentering adult students, such as adult basic education, GED	Monroe County Community College is the lead partner and fiduciary for the Monroe County Learning Bank Network, which is a public/private partnership of 12 community organizations and businesses that provides adult basic education and GED preparation for adults in order to transition them into higher education, and/or employment and training opportunities. In addition, The Learning Bank Network offers a host of related services, such as group and individual tutoring, career counseling and advising; skill-building seminars in college and career success; courses in financial literacy, parenting and other life skills; and direct access to employers for internships, career exploration and possible jobs.  MCCC works in partnership with Bedford Adult Education by
preparation, GED testing, or recruiting, advising, or orientation activities specific to adults.	providing COMPASS – Computer-Adaptive Placement Assessment and Support System – testing for county residents. The COMPASS is a series of basic skills assessments in English, Reading, and Math developed by American College Testing (ACT) and completed on a computer. The tests are used to place students in classes that match their abilities.  The College annually hosts a new student orientation program that is specifically designed for non-traditional students. Return to Learn addresses not only typical orientation topics but also includes topics of specific interest to non-traditional students.  MCCC offers ACT and COMPASS Prep courses to help students prepare for these tests.
(v) The community college has active partnerships with regional 4-year colleges and universities to promote successful transfer, such as articulation, 2+2, or reverse	MCCC's academic divisions have a number of transfer agreements and direct articulation agreements with area colleges and regional universities including two that have satellite campuses onsite (Eastern Michigan University and Siena Heights University). The Associate Degree Nursing and Respiratory Therapy programs maintain third-party accreditation which significantly increases transferability of courses within those programs.  MCCC participates in The Michigan Transfer Network which is a valuable "single source" website that students, advisors and the public may use to check transfer
transfer agreements or operation of a university center.	equivalencies for courses among and between other colleges and universities in Michigan. It is sponsored by the Michigan Association of Collegiate Registrars and Admissions Officers (MACRAO) in partnership with Michigan State University.  MCCC has a number of Baccalaureate Completion Agreements (2+2 agreements and 3+1 agreements). These
	serve as a guide for students to follow if they know where they

Best Practices by Category	Examples of MCCC Adherence
	want to transfer and also which major they are interested in. The bachelor completion agreements are designed for direct transfer into a particular program after earning a specific Monroe County Community College degree.
	MCCC is currently pursuing reverse transfer agreements with the University of Toledo and Eastern Michigan University.
Category 3: Commun	ity Services
(i) The community college provides continuing education programming for leisure, wellness,	The Corporate and Community Services Division through their Lifelong Learning class schedule offers a wide variety of noncredit programs. The College averages nearly 5,300 total noncredit enrollments annually.
personal enrichment, or professional development.	Nursing Alumni Day held annually provide 6.8 hours of CEUs for licensed nurses. The target audience is MCCC alumni; however, the program is open to any licensed RN or PN that registers.
(ii) The community college operates or sponsors opportunities for community members to engage in activities that promote leisure, wellness, cultural or personal enrichment	MCCC has numerous opportunities for community engagement including the College/Community Symphony Band and the Agora Chorale. Both performance groups are open to College students, high school students currently enrolled at MCCC in the Dual Enrollment program, and citizens from the community who have experience with instrumental or vocal music.In addition, the local community theater group, the Monroe County Community Players, uses the MCCC Meyer Theater for their productions.
such as community sports teams, theater or musical ensembles, or artist	The MCCC Alumni Association hosts an annual Golf Outing that is open to the public and The Foundation hosts a 5K run/walk each fall called the Great Pumpkin Pursuit.
guilds.	MCCC maintains an outdoor fitness trail (outdoor exercise equipment called a parcourse) that consists of a course equipped with stations distributed along its length for exercising to promote good health. It is open to the general community.
	MCCC offers its gymnasium to community groups and schools for a modest rental fee. Gym rentals include the public and parochial schools, City of Monroe Volleyball and AAU Teams.
(iii) The community college operates	The College has an extensive annual calendar of cultural events open to the public which includes exhibits, demonstrations,

Best Practices by Category	Examples of MCCC Adherence
public facilities to promote cultural, educational, or personal enrichment for community members, such as libraries, computer labs, performing arts centers, museums, art galleries, or television or radio stations.	lectures, slide shows, concerts, plays, athletic and seasonal events that feature well-known regional and national artists. Many events are free, and all are open to the public. In addition, MCCC hosts educational displays and speakers on campus throughout the year.  The MCCC Library is available for the community to use and community groups and organizations, both profit and non-profit, may use college facilities and equipment, with or without a charge, depending on the use.
(iv) The community college operates public facilities to promote leisure or wellness activities for community members, including gymnasiums, athletic fields, tennis courts, fitness centers, hiking or biking trails, or natural areas.	MCCC has a gymnasium, dance aerobics room, Fitness Center, and parcourse to promote fitness activities in the community. The Fitness Center is open to all MCCC students and staff free of charge. Alumni Association members who have paid a membership fee may also use the facility.  MCCC maintains an outdoor fitness trail (outdoor exercise equipment called a parcourse) that consists of a course equipped with stations distributed along its length for exercising to promote good health. It is open to the general community.
(v) The community college promotes, sponsors, or hosts community service activities for students, staff, or community members.	The College is an active sponsor, and/or co-sponsor of numerous college and community events throughout the year, and many community organizations receive reduced rates, and/or free facility usage at the College for their events. Last year, the facilities fees waived for community organizations totaled more than \$64,000.  Blue Jean Fridays is a program wherein staff can donate to the designated local monthly charity and dress informally on Fridays in return.  Many student clubs are involved directly or indirectly in public service activities including blood drives; Habitat for Humanity builds; book drives; and Toys for Tots, Salvation Army, and United Way collections.  MCCC is a member of the Monroe County Substance Abuse Coalition.

Best Practices by Category	Examples of MCCC Adherence
	The MCCC Bookstore sponsors National Student Day each fall. This is a day dedicated to celebrating student volunteerism and social responsibility.